
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 
Scrutiny Board 
23 October 2023 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre 

Membership 
 
Chair Cllr Philip Bateman MBE (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Ellis Turrell (Con) 
 
Labour Conservative  

Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman 
Cllr Qaiser Azeem 
Cllr Anwen Muston 
Cllr John Reynolds 
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar 
 

Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors. 
 
Information for the Public 
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Scrutiny Team: 

Contact Martin Stevens DL 
Tel/Email martin.stevens@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Scrutiny Team, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
Tel 01902 555046 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Agenda 
 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 
  
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
  
1 Apologies for absence and Notification of Substitutions  
 [To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions].   

  
2 Declarations of interest  
 [To receive any declarations of interest].   

  
PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY 
  
3 Scrutiny Annual Report May 2022 - May 2023 (Pages 3 - 22) 
 [To consider the Scrutiny Annual Report May 2022 – May 2023 before it is received 

by Full Council on 8 November 2023].   
  

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
4 Wolverhampton Local Plan  
 [To receive a presentation on the evening about the latest position on the 

Wolverhampton Local Plan].   
  
[Slides will be sent out in advance of the meeting].   
  

5 Scrutiny Work programme (Pages 23 - 54) 
 [To consider the Scrutiny Work Programme].   

  
6 Forward Plan of Key Decisions  
 [To consider the latest Forward Plan of Key Decisions].   

  
[Report is marked: To Follow, in order to ensure the latest version is considered which 
will be published next week].   
  



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Annual Report 2022/2023 1 

 

 SCRUTINY 
  Annual Report May 2022 - May 2023 

  

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

A Year in Scrutiny  
 
 

  
 
Cllr Phil Bateman MBE 
Chair of Scrutiny Board from 17 May 
2023 
 
Following the City council elections in May 
2023, I was elected by the new administration 
into the role as Chair of Scrutiny Board. I am 
very much looking forward to the Municipal 
year ahead. I am a long serving member of the 
City of Wolverhampton Council. I see great 
value in looking back, and this is why the 
Annual Report is such an important document 

for our Council.  As Chair of Scrutiny Board 
there will be issues which I will be putting 
forward for consideration, which have been 
scrutinised in the past. History gives us a very 
clear picture of how various aspects of society- 
such as technology, governmental systems, 
society as a whole changes. I want to make it 
clear that some of these topics may again 
need to be evaluated. Like in the past where 
services the Council had made progress on in 
areas such as flooding prevention, and the 
recommendations from the Select Committee 
on the Wolverhampton Pound. My aim is to 
get Scrutiny involved in a couple of specialist 
review groups this year.   
  
I would like to thank Cllr Paul Sweet, the Chair 
of the Scrutiny Board for his dedication and for 
his contribution as the Chair. Last year was a 
particular busy year for Scrutiny Board with it 
meeting a total of ten times, with often full 
agendas.  This report reflects on the year May 
2022 – May 2023 and it shows the clear 
breadth and quantity of topics covered by 
Scrutiny.   
  
I am keen to enhance Scrutiny Board’s 
coordination role of the Work Programme 
across the Scrutiny Panels. I want to promote 
the work of Scrutiny across the organisation 
and work effectively with opposition Members 
in a collaborative approach to improve the 
lives of our residents and people working and 
visiting the City. I also want to see the work of 
the 2023 Scrutiny Committee to be of good 
quality and standard which improves the 
performance of government here in our great 
City of Wolverhampton. Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 

2 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 
David Pattison 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

The Council are committed to the continuous 
improvement of the Scrutiny. This is in line 
with our duty as a Best Value Council, to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in 
which the Council functions are exercised, 
having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. The Statutory 
Scrutiny Guidance was issued in 2019 and is 
still in force. This acts as an exceptionally 
good framework to help ensure that Local 
Authorities are implementing good governance 
in relation to the Scrutiny function.  
 

Culture plays an important part within any 
Local Authority, to ensure that scrutiny plays 
an effective role. Our Strategic Executive 
Board value the role of Scrutiny in providing 
that critical friend challenge to drive service 
improvement, and it's a culture that is 
continuing to cascade to all officers throughout 
the authority. One of the key areas for 
improvement I have strived to achieve is to 
bring a performance management culture and 
framework to the authority. This is why 
Scrutiny Board, with the support of 

Councillors, now regularly considers 
Performance and Budget reports, which has 
proved most effective. 
 

There have been many great examples of 
excellent Scrutiny at the authority during the 
last Municipal year. It is my endeavour and 
desire to build on the successes of last year, 
working with Councillors and Officers of the 
Council to further enhance the effectiveness of 
Scrutiny within the overall Governance 
framework of the Council. It is a fundamental 
truth that effective Scrutiny leads to better 
decision making and this is clear on a local, 
national and regional level. It is sometimes 
those difficult questions and debates which 
help reveal the best path ahead and often at a 
strategic policy level.   
 
Recommendations are part of effective 
scrutiny and I am pleased that the 
recommendations from the Wolverhampton 
Pound Select Committee were evaluated on 
their progress in the Municipal year. The 
Health Scrutiny Panel has made some 
excellent recommendations on Primary Care, 
which have made a real difference to the lives 
of Wolverhampton residents.  As a Council 
with an overall principle of “Driven by Digital” 
within Our City, Our Plan, I am proud of the 
fact that every Scrutiny Panel and Board 
meeting was livestreamed and recorded. This 
is excellent for Democracy and has enhanced 
Scrutiny’s profile within the City and the 
authority.   
 

There were some special extra meetings 
added within the Municipal year when needed 
to look at important matters. This was most 
prominent in the case for Scrutiny Board and 
shows the flexibility and adaptability of the 
Scrutiny function to react to matters of great 
local interest.  Some of these meetings were 
requested by Councillors, demonstrating how 
in Wolverhampton, scrutiny is “Member led”, 
supported by the expertise of Officers within 
the Council.   
 

I know that in the Municipal year 2023/24 
Scrutiny will continue to strive to improve 
performance and to hold the Executive of the 
Council and our key partners to account.  
 
 
 Page 4



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 3 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

   

Laura Gittos 
Head of Governance 
 
Scrutiny is a necessary part of a democratic 
process, where checks and balances are 
required to ensure all forms of government, 
from elected officials through to the 
administrative bureaucracy and those partners 
who deliver vital services on behalf of the 
Council, continue to operate efficiently and 
transparently.   
 
The scrutiny function has continued to 
transform over the municipal year, we have 
had a renewed focus on the Scrutiny Work 
Programme, ensuring that all items have a 
clear purpose, and the programme is led by 
Councillors.  
 
This municipal year we introduced an internal 

tracking and monitoring system for Officer use. 

The system ensures all actions from meetings 

are documented and this has helped reassure 

Panel Members of the ongoing work to follow 

up on decisions made in Scrutiny meetings. 
 
The Council ensure that all meetings are 
transparent, and that all members of the public 
could attend in person or watch the live 
webcast at home.  
 

 
Laura Noonan  
Electoral Services and Scrutiny Manager 
 

I joined the Scrutiny Team part way through 

the Municipal year May 2022 – May 2023 and 

I have enjoyed learning about the Scrutiny 

function in Wolverhampton. It’s been a busy 

year for Scrutiny with 43 official Public Scrutiny 

meetings held. Scrutiny Board accounted for 

nearly a quarter of these meetings, with a total 

of 10 held. All Board and Panel meetings were 

live streamed and recorded, and these are 

available to view on the Council’s website up 

to 12 months after the meeting. I am 

particularly pleased that we can now 

livestream meetings in high definition from 

Committee Room 3 as well as within the 

Council Chamber.  

 

I would like to place on record my thanks to 

Martin, Earl and Lee for their dedication and 

support to Scrutiny. I look forward to 

contributing to the development of the Scrutiny 

function over the next municipal year. 

Page 5



 

4 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Martin Stevens DL 
Scrutiny Team Leader 
 
What makes good Scrutiny? A simple question 

which Councillors and Officers should continue 

to ask themselves throughout any Municipal 

year.  Choosing a topic area which can make 

a real difference to people’s lives, I would 

argue is crucial. Receiving the right 

information at the right time, in a format which 

is accessible would also feature on my list.  

Challenging and meaningful questions is 

additionally of high importance. Making 

recommendations for improvement and 

monitoring how these are being implemented 

is also a vital part of the function.    

 
 

In the background, research by Officers and 

Councillors all help to contribute to the 

tapestry of exceptional scrutiny. Everyone has 

their part to play in contributing to the Scrutiny 

function and you should never underestimate 

how you or anyone else’s input can help build 

the foundations of its success. How other 

Local Authorities and Partners conduct 

scrutiny should also be of interest and indeed 

what the Council has completed in the past.   

It was after all Sir Isaac Newton that said, he 

had only seen further by “Standing on the 

Shoulders of Giants”. Collectively Councillors 

and Officers can achieve great things by 

embracing the Scrutiny function. Imagination 

and innovation are just as important in 

Scrutiny as in the Arts.  

 

I see one of the key functions of Scrutiny as 

being able to inspire innovation in policy and 

strategy, to be able to look at issues with a 

new lens, bringing clarity and ideas to long 

standing problems the City faces.  
 

 

 
Earl Piggott-Smith 
Scrutiny Officer 
 

The work of scrutiny continues to have a 

positive impact on supporting the work being 

done across the Council during the year to 

achieve the priorities set out in Our City, Our 

Plan. The topics for scrutiny that have been 

selected during the year have been chosen to 

recognise and celebrate the successful work 

of areas of Council business and where 

appropriate, shine a scrutiny light on areas of 

poor performance to better understand the 

plans to respond to the challenges. 
 
The topics selected have provided the 

opportunity to look more deeply into topics and 

to obtain more knowledge about the 

achievements. Councillors have been able to 

make positive contributions during meetings 

with the aims of getting better outcomes for 

the residents of Wolverhampton. 

 

Page 6



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 5 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The work of scrutiny continues to provide the 

right balance between challenge and support, 

with Councillors focused on cross cutting 

topics which contribute to improving the impact 

of Council policies. 

 
The importance of Panel Member site visits 

was again highlighted in helping Councillors to 

better understand issues which sometimes is 

not always captured in reports and 

presentations. The feedback from Panel 

Members has been very positive to the idea of 

visits and hopefully these will continue into 

next year.  

 
There have been many examples of good 

scrutiny during the year which has helped 

increase Councillor engagement and the 

opportunity to further raise the profile of the 

important work that it does across the Council.  

 

 
Lee Booker 
Scrutiny Officer 
 

Since joining the Scrutiny team in January 
2023, I have taken part in several Scrutiny 
Panel meetings. Specific to the 2022 – 2023 
Municipal year, I attended Economy & Growth, 
Health, and the Residents, Housing and 
Communities Scrutiny Panel meetings. These 
Scrutiny meetings provided valuable critical 
oversight to key areas in the Council and 
partners’ operations and contributed important 

scrutiny to areas which impact ordinary 
people's lives across Wolverhampton; it is 
those people, who we serve.  
 
I look forward to Clerking in the coming 
Municipal year and working with our 
Councillors and Officers to ensure good 
governance is in place in the City of 
Wolverhampton Council. I will be working on 
the following Panels, Health, Economy and 
Growth, Resources and Equality.  Scrutiny is 
set to look at a wide variety of items across 
these Panels and I am pleased to add some 
thoughts on some of these below. 
 
Following on from a site visit with Councillors 
who were part of the Economy & Growth 
Panel earlier in 2023 to the National 
Brownfield Institute, I look forward to 
representatives from the National Brownfield 
Institute attending the Panel with the City 
Regeneration Team to present their report on 
their business case. The Green Economy is 
another pressing issue, where Scrutiny will be 
able to look at the progress the Council is 
making towards its climate commitments, as 
well as looking at the establishment of a Green 
Partner Board, an important step in this on-
going work. 
 
In Health, the Panel has many important items 
to scrutinise in the next Municipal year. 
The Health Scrutiny Panel will be working with 
Public Health and Adult Social Care, The 
Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust (RWT), 
West Midlands Ambulance Service, NHS 
England, The Black Country Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust, The Black Country 
Integrated Care Board and Partnership, and 
Healthwatch to ensure that the Healthcare 
services are providing the quality healthcare 
citizens need.   
 
For Resources and Equality, the Panel will be 
able to scrutinise employment equality 
statistics and policy performance with updates 
on the Council’s Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Strategy as well as Council 
Resource Management which includes 
Council Assets. The LGA Resident 
Satisfaction Polling will be considered by the 
Panel, which will be an important window into 
the views of the residents. 

Page 7



 

6 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Scrutiny Board 

Chair: Cllr Paul Sweet  
Vice-Chair: Cllr Ellis Turrell 
 

 
 
The first meeting of the Municipal year was 
held in June 2022. The Panel received a 
report on Social Care, Public Health, 
Corporate Complaints and Compliments.  
They also reviewed a report on the 
recommendations from the Select Committee 
which had been held on the Wolverhampton 
Pound. 
 
At the meeting in July, Scrutiny Board 
considered a report on the Blue Badge 
Service. At this meeting they also received a 
report on the Performance and Budget Outturn 
2021-2022. Scrutiny Board has continued to 
monitor the performance of the Council.  The 
report brought together the performance and 
financial position for the Council until the end 
of March 2022. The Council had strengthened 
links last year between performance and 
budget to ensure they were robustly 
monitoring delivery of Council priorities under 
pinned by the budget. The report revealed that 
18 out of 29 indicators showed an 
improvement, a further 10 indicators were 
showing similar performance and one indicator 
saw a decrease in performance during the last 
12 months. 
 

In October, the Board considered the 
Performance and Budget monitoring position, 
as had been reported to Cabinet in 
September. The report set out the 
performance against the Our City: Our Plan 
indicators for Quarter 1, 2022-2023. Some of 
the indicators were the specific responsibility 
of the Council whereas others linked more 

broadly into wider systemic issues which the 
City were facing.  There were 61 performance 
indicators within the Our City: Our Plan 
framework. Three Quarters of the 57 of the 
indicators which could be updated in quarter 1, 
showed improvement or sustained strong 
performance. There were also some areas 
where performance could be improved such 
as youth employment and Wolves at Work 18-
24. A key part of the approach was to link 
performance with key financial and budget 
information. Councillors gave robust questions 
to Officers.   
 

At the October meeting there was a special 
item on City Regeneration and the Civic Halls. 
The Panel resolved that a further report be 
brought on the Civic Halls at an appropriate 
time.    
 

In November, Board considered the item 
which had been Called-in on the 
Wolverhampton Local Development Scheme.  
The item had been called in by the Vice-Chair 
of Scrutiny Board, Cllr Turrell.  A number of 
options were available to Scrutiny Board 
constitutionally for a Call-in item.  Ultimately 
after a lengthy discussion, the Board resolved 
that “the decision of Cabinet be noted and 
implemented immediately.” Additional items 
considered at the meeting were on City Centre 
Regeneration, Visitor Experience 
Strategy/Plan and Budget and a report 
reviewing progress on the Wolverhampton 
Pound Select Committee recommendations.  
The Chair complimented Officers on the speed 
of work in implementing the recommendations 
from the Wolverhampton Pound Select 
Committee.  A link to the report reviewing the 
recommendations and the minutes can be 
found here, Wolverhampton Pound Review of 
Recommendations - Scrutiny Board 
 

The December meeting was a comprehensive 
agenda with items on, WMCA (West Midlands 
Combined Authority) Annual Scrutiny Report, 
Performance and Budget Monitoring, Levelling 
up including investment zones, Graffiti, and 
Grass verges. It was reported that in total 
there were 56 KPI’s in the Our City: Our Plan 
performance framework. 33 had shown 
improvement or had seen similar performance. 
Six had seen a decrease in performance.  
 
 

Page 8

https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=18035&Ver=4
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=18035&Ver=4


 

Annual Report 2022/2023 7 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

In January, the Board received a detailed 
report on the Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 2023/24 including rent and 
service charges. At this meeting they also had 
a report on the City Realm Public 
Improvements Programme.   
 
 

The February meeting was dedicated to two 
items, one on the Draft Budget and Medium-
Term Financial Strategy and the second was 
on the Our City: Our Plan Refresh. Scrutiny 
Board resolved to endorse the Our City: Our 
Plan Refresh.  
  
 

There were two meetings of Scrutiny Board 
held in March this Municipal year. The meeting 
on the 7 March considered items on the 
improvement work taking place in the Blue 
Badge Service and Levelling Up funding. The 
meeting on the 14 March included items on 
the Wolverhampton Investment Prospectus – 
First Phase Delivery Plan, Public Realm – 
Support for Businesses, and the Home Office 
Asylum Policy.   
 

 

An extraordinary meeting of the Board was 
held on 2 May 2023 in the week of the all-out 
election. This meeting focused on the City 
West Grant Relaunch Scheme Payments.    
 

Cllr Paul Sweet (Chair for 
Municipal year May 
2022- May 2023) said, “It 
has definitely been my 
busiest year as Chair. 
For the item on the 
WMCA Annual Scrutiny 
Report we invited the 
Chair of the Panel, Cllr 

Cathryn Bayton, into the meeting via MS 
Teams. Technology is truly transforming the 
way we work.  
 

There have been significant improvements in 
the Blue Badge Service following Scrutiny 
Board’s consideration. This has been a great 
example of Scrutiny making a real difference 
to services of the Council. I was also very 
pleased with the meeting in February which 
brought together all the Scrutiny Panel’s 
comments on the Draft Budget and Medium-
Term Financial Strategy for Board to consider. 
This really highlighted Scrutiny Board’s role as 

a coordinator and on a very important subject 
area.  
 
Scrutiny Board considered a diverse range of 
topics this year and was effective in holding 
the Executive to account.” 
 

Cllr Ellis Turrell (Vice-
Chair) stated, “Scrutiny 
is a vitally important 
function of any local 
authority, and when 
used effectively it can 
lead to improved 
performance and 
delivery of services to 
local residents. In my 
first year as Vice-Chair, 

I have been pleased to help lead the way in 
expanding the remit of scrutiny and the topics 
that Scrutiny Board and the Scrutiny Panels 
have looked into. 
 

The Scrutiny Work Programme was constantly 
being updated to add new agenda items, and 
there were a significant number of additional 
meetings held throughout the Municipal year 
scrutinising hugely important topics including 
the Civic Halls project, tree maintenance 
services, customer service response times 
and the installation of new cycle lanes across 
the city. 
 
 

It is right that the work of Scrutiny Board and 
all Scrutiny Panels at the Council are Member-
led, and that Cabinet Members and Senior 
Officers are held to account and challenged 
over their decision-making. There is always 
room for improving the scrutiny process, and it 
is the responsibility of all Councillors to 
consider where changes may be needed to 
enhance the independent mindset that 
effective scrutiny needs. I look forward to 
continuing our work in scrutinising key issues 
as Vice-Chair in the 2023-24 Municipal year”.  
 

 
 

Page 9



 

8 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Economy and 
Growth 
Chair: Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Sohail Khan 
 

 
 
The first meeting of the Municipal year for the 
Panel was a question and answer session with 
the Portfolio Holder for Inclusive City 
Economy. 
   
 

The meeting in September saw a 
comprehensive agenda with items on Inward 
Investment, Visitor Experience, Culture and 
Leisure Offer, and City Public Realm Works.  
When Inward Investment was discussed one 
of the recurring points was in relation to the 
importance of the City attracting hotel 
development. Praise was also given to the 
Inward Investment Prospectus. When the item 
on Visitor experience was discussed, it was 
outlined that research by IPW Consultants had 
identified 3 objectives,  
 

• Change perceptions of the City – by 
enhancing profile and reputation nationally 
and internationally.  

• Increase the social benefit and value from 
events – by creating opportunities for 

employment and skills development. 
• Increase the economic benefit and return 

from events – by generating significant new 
direct and indirect spend. 

  
 

The November meeting received items on 
Performance, Budget Monitoring and the 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy, Business 
Support at Place Level, Heath Town Baths 
and i54 new businesses. A report on the 
progress on the Heath Town Baths 
development is expected later in 2023. 

 
 

The final meeting of the year, the Panel 
considered items on the Green Economy. 
Business support activity within the City 
Council Wards, and Public Realm – Support 
Package to Businesses.   
 

Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman 
(Chair) said, “I am very 
pleased that the Panel 
has had good 
engagement with the 
Cabinet Member for 
Inclusive City Economy, 
throughout the year and I 
am sure this will continue 
into the next Municipal 

year.  A good working relationship with the 
Cabinet Member can help to ensure effective 
scrutiny in the Local Authority and is 
recommended as good practice in the 
Statutory Scrutiny guidance issued by the 
Government.   
 
Inward Investment is a critical component to 
the success of the City and this is why I called 
for this to come to the September meeting of 
the Panel.  We also need to increase visitors 
to the City to help stimulate economic growth, 
which in turn will encourage investment into 
the City.  It was for this reason that the Panel 
asked for an item on Visitor Experience, 
Culture and Leisure Offer.  I am keen for the 
Council to explore how other Cities in the UK 
and internationally, have transformed their 
economies into ones that can be described 
with confidence, as secure, thriving and 
expanding.  It is only by looking to the future 
that the City will be able to adapt to modernity 
and fulfil our Council priorities of residents 
living fulfilled lives in a thriving economy and 
with local people having good jobs and 
training.  
 
In the new Municipal year I would like the 
Panel to build on the item they considered on 
the Green Economy this year.  It is important 
there is exploration of the challenges and 
opportunities in the emerging Green Economy 
I would like to thank everyone who has had a 
positive impact on the work of the Panel this 
year.”       

Page 10



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 9 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
Cllr Sohail Khan (Vice-
Chair) reflecting on the 
year commented, “During 
my year as Vice-Chair, I 
was pleased to be able to 
scrutinise many pertinent 
issues that are key to the 
long-term development of 
our City and its residents. 

Along with the Chair and Members we looked 
at, Business support for City Traders, Public 
Realm works, City centre economy and visitor 
experience, Heath town baths and the Eye 
Infirmary to name but a few. 
 
Furthermore, I had the opportunity to Chair a 
meeting for the first time in my tenure which 
gave me beneficial experience that I very 
much appreciated and relished. 
 
On a personal level, I’m excited to see the 
report on the City Centre hotels finally coming 
to the Panel this year. It was something I had 
requested to be kept on the Work Plan since it 
had been pushed back several times from the 
Scrutiny Panel over the last couple of years”. 
 

Resources and 
Equality 
 

Chair: Cllr Zee Russell 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Udey Singh 
 

 
 
The first meeting of the year was in June and 
the Panel received reports on the following 
items, Linked Bodies and Ethnicity Pay Gap.  
The Panel has responsibility for the scrutiny of 
organisation and performance of the human, 

financial, technical, and material resources 
that support the delivery of Council services. 
The Panel had a detailed presentation from 
the Chief Operating Officer on the Council’s 
arrangements for monitoring linked 
commercial trading bodies, for example 
Wolverhampton Homes and Yoo Recruit, that 
it either owns or controls and their 
performance.  
 
The presentation explained the different types 
of legal bodies, the rules for setting them up 
and the process for reviewing them. In 
response to a number of recent high-profile 
national cases about how other Councils have 
managed their commercial enterprises it was 
considered both timely and important for the 
Panel to scrutinise the strength of the current 
governance and oversight arrangements of the 
different linked bodies. The Panel discussed 
the lessons learnt nationally from the finding 
from external auditors who reviewed the 
governance arrangements in the highlighted 
examples. 
 
The Panel queried the rationale for setting up 
linked bodies, the financial benefits to the 
Council and the level of financial risk. The 
Panel discussed in detail the current and 
future plans to ensure continuing compliance 
with good practice and the recommendations 
from external auditors about how the Council 
manages its relationship with linked bodies. 
 
The Panel were supportive of the approach 
taken by the Council and agreed to look in 
detail at the governance arrangements for Yoo 
Recruit and the strength of the business case, 
and the extent to which the actions of the 
Board can be properly scrutinised to ensure 
best value at a future meeting. A private 
company manages Yoo Recruit on behalf of 
the Council. The contract ends in 2024. 
The Panel will be involved in reviewing any 
proposed changes being considered to the 
linked bodies in the future. 
  
The meeting in October considered the 
following topics, EDI strategy, Treasury 
Management and the Reserves Working 
Group, Customer Services performance and 
future strategy and Contract Management and 
Procurement Update. 
 

Page 11



 

10 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

For the item on the Customer Services 
performance and future strategy, the Panel 
had a presentation from the Head of Customer 
Engagement and Registrars about key 
achievements of the service, and the 
improvements made during the year to better 
meet the needs of internal and external 
customers. The Head of Customer 
Engagement and Registrars gave an overview 
of the performance of the service against key 
indicators based on an analysis of public 
enquiries received by telephone, email, and 
face-to face, services delivered. The service 
handled 592,922 customer contacts in 2021-
2022. 
 
The Panel discussed how the service was 
meeting the needs of different customers and 
what further action was being planned to 
reduce the call abandonment rate figures and 
to provide a better overall experience to 
residents.  
 
The Panel discussed the demands on the 
service and welcomed the plans for 
introducing a new customer service system 
which will address the concerns highlighted 
during the meeting. The Panel have a much 
better understanding of the challenges in 
providing an effective and efficient customer 
service. The Panel agreed to review and 
scrutinise the performance of the service at a 
future meeting. 
 
At the December meeting the Panel 
considered the following topics, Land and 
Property Disposal Policy, Reserves Working 
Group report, External Grant Funding, 
Performance, Budget Monitoring and Medium-
Term Financial Strategy.  For the External 
Grant Funding item, The Head of External 
Funding gave a detailed presentation of the 
national and local context for submitting a bid. 
For example, highlighting that the average 
cost of the Council submitting a competitive 
grant funding bid has been estimated at 
around £30,000.  
 
The Panel discussed the recommendations of 
Wolverhampton Pound that a minimum of two 
of the bids submitted should be from local 
suppliers. The Head of External Funding 
highlighted the success of funding bid 

applications to date, and the work done to 
work with local suppliers. 
 
The Head of External Funding advised the 
Panel that it is a competitive process, and it is 
estimated that only 1 in 3 bids for external 
funding are successful. 
 
The meeting in February considered the 
following topics, Customer Experience 
Strategy Consultation Update, Digital Wolves 
Strategy Update and the Treasury 
Management Strategy.   
 
In March the Panel considered the following 
topics, Equality Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy Update – Objective 3 (Develop an 
inclusive workplace culture, where targeted 
professional training, development and 
support is provided and to get comments from 
members), Race equality code and Ethnicity 
Pay Gap Update, Yoo Recruit Review, and 
Review of Council and Staff Subscription to 
other bodies – Governance Directorate. 
 
An important part of good scrutiny is to follow 
up an issue from a previous meeting in more 
detail to either respond to concerns raised at 
the time or to get reassurance about progress 
made in achieving the stated policy objectives.  
The Panel asked for report on the findings of 
‘deep dive’ review of the governance 
arrangements of YOO Recruit to be presented 
for discussion to a future meeting.  The Chief 
Operating Officer had agreed at the time to 
present a report to update the Panel on any 
proposed changes to the future management 
of YOO Recruit.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer outlined the main 
findings from the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) and reassured the Panel 
about the level of confidence in arrangements 
for overseeing the performance of Council 
owned bodies.  
 
The Panel had a wide-ranging discussion 
about the governance, membership structure, 
and financial performance of YOO Recruit and 
welcomed the opportunity to consider possible 
alternatives options to address the challenges 
in recruiting temporary employees, particularly 
in procurement and planning services. 

Page 12



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 11 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Panel supported the ideas from the Chief 
Operating Officer to invite a member of YOO 
Recruit board to talk about their work to help 
Councillors to scrutinise and challenge the 
decisions and to reassure themselves about 
the arrangements for monitoring and reviewing 
performance of the organisation.  
 
The discussion resulted in a much better 
understanding of the how the Council is 
responding to major changes in the way 
people now search for jobs and the 
competition to fill vacancies where employees 
now have much wider choice of job 
opportunities with the ability to work remotely. 
 

Cllr Zee Russell (Chair) 
said, “the Panel agreed to 
add the topic of EDI 
strategy to the Panel 
programme and that it 
should be a standing item 
given the importance of 
the issue to the Council. 
The valuable support and 
contributions of David 

Pattison, Chief Operating Officer, and Jin 
Takhar Head of Equalities and representatives 
of staff equality forum members was helpful in 
understanding the issue. 
 
I think it was a good decision to make this 
issue a standing item and the excellent 
example of good scrutiny in action. The Panel 
were able to look across a range of related 
topics such as, progress against the Race at 
Work Charter Standards, and the Gender 
Equality and Rainbow City Plans and work 
being done to increase diversity representation 
at senior management level. 
 
I think that there is clear evidence that the 
Council is moving in the right direction and the 
Panel welcomes the efforts to build on good 
progress made in all areas on equalities to 
have its work externally assessed. I was also 
pleased with the scrutiny of the governance 
arrangements of Yoo Recruit and the success 
of efforts to secure external grant funding to 
support the wider strategic goals of the 
Council and better meet the needs of 
Wolverhampton. The discussions were a 
useful reminder of the importance of putting 
principals of good governance into practice 

and being open to challenge about how 
Council resources are used to support the 
wider strategic goals and provide reassurance 
to Councillors that effective systems are in 
place.” 
 

Cllr Udey Singh (Vice-Chair) 
said, “"I've thoroughly 
enjoyed my tenure as Vice-
Chair for the Panel. It's truly 
heartening to observe the 
Council's commitment to 
promoting equality. With the 
Equality Diversity and 
Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 

firmly in place, this commitment will 
progressively permeate the organisation and 
resonate with its essential stakeholders and 
partners. 
 
Undoubtedly, a crucial aspect of our role has 
been the diligent examination of the Gender 
Pay Gap. Through this, our Panel has gained 
valuable insights into how this disparity 
impacts the organisation. Personally, a 
standout experience for me has been the 
comprehensive evaluation of the efficacy of 
Yoo Recruit, gauging its ongoing benefits for 
the organization.  Additionally, it remains 
imperative to consistently assess various 
facets of the Council to ensure optimal value 
for the City's residents. This ongoing scrutiny 
ensures the delivery of the utmost cost-
effective services." 

Strong Families, 
Children and Young 
People 
Chair: Cllr Rita Potter 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Adam Collinge 
 
 

 
 

Page 13



 

12 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The first meeting of the year was in June and 
the Panel received reports on the following 
items, Children’s Residential Provision Phase 
2 – Business Case and the SEND Cross-Party 
Scrutiny Review Group - Written Statement of 
Action. The meeting in July, Councillors 
focused on children’s social care - Draft Ofsted 
inspection of Local Authority Children's 
Services (ILACS) Action Plan, Principal Social 
Worker Annual Report 2021 – 2022 and the 
Children and Young People Social Work Self 
Evaluation.   
 
The Panel had a presentation from the Deputy 
Director of Children’s Social Care about the 
ILACS action plan and process for monitoring 
progress following the recent Ofsted 
inspection of the City of Wolverhampton Local 
Authority Children’s Service. The inspection 
covered the following areas - services for 
children and families needing help and 
protection and children and young people in 
care and care leavers.  
 
The Panel welcomed the achievements and 
the progress made by the service since the 
previous Ofsted inspection and supported the 
action plan drafted in response to the 
inspection. The Panel discussed the issue of 
the school transport costs for parents who do 
not get a preferred school place. This 
conversation led to a wider discussion of the 
challenges facing schools wanting to expand 
capacity to meet demand at a time when the 
level of Government funding for building has 
reduced. The Panel had a helpful discussion 
about the support help available in situations 
where children are homeless or where a family 
has no recourse to public funds.  
 
The meeting in October considered the 
following topics, Youth and Holiday Offer in the 
City, SEND Cross Party Scrutiny Review 
Group - Written Statement of Action and the 
Children's Services Transformation 
Programme Annual Report.  On the item on 
the Youth and Holiday offer, the Panel had a 
joint presentation from the Deputy Director of 
Commissioning and Transformation of 
Children Services and from Jackie Redding, 
Chief Executive, The Way Youth Zone to talk 
about the current universal and holiday offer in 
Wolverhampton. The Panel discussed the 
numbers of young people attending Summer 

Programme activities this year when 
compared to the same period in the previous 
year and asked for more details to better 
understand take up levels. 
 
The Panel talked about the impact of poverty 
on parents and wanted reassurance that 
information sent to explain that young people 
are welcome to attend even if they don’t have 
the money to pay the entrance fee to, The 
Way. The Panel wanted more opportunities for 
community and voluntary organisations to get 
involved in delivering activities and supported 
to make funding bids. There was a good 
discussion around both the quality of the 
current offer from, The Way, but also the 
challenges it faces in trying to reassure 
parents and young people with concerns about 
local gangs. The Panel welcomed the plans to 
promote message about what is acceptable 
behaviour at the centre and to improve the 
information on the website for parents and 
young people. 
 
The meeting in November considered the 
following topics, Update from SEND Cross 
Party Scrutiny Review Group: Written 
Statement of Action, Performance, Budget 
Monitoring and Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy, Education Excellence: Update and 
monitoring and the Virtual School Head 
Annual Report. On the Virtual School Head 
item, the Panel had a detailed briefing on the 
draft Virtual School Annual report before it was 
presented to Cabinet for approval. The Virtual 
School Head highlighted the educational 
outcomes and achievements of children and 
young people in care and care leavers from 
September 2021 to July 2022 in 
Wolverhampton. The Panel were very 
encouraged by the progress made, 
highlighting the work being done to reduce the 
number of children recorded as being 
persistently absent.  
 
The Panel have a much better understanding 
of the factors behind the issue and welcomed 
plans to develop smart educational targets for 
young people when drafting their Personal 
Education Plans to improve the situation.  
The Panel will continue to monitor progress of 
work to track the educational progress of 
looked after children to meet its corporate 
parenting responsibilities. 

Page 14



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 13 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
The final meeting of the year the following 
topics were discussed, Social Work and 
Workforce Health Check, Family Hubs, School 
Appeals and School Exclusion and 
Suspension (Equalities). 
 

Cllr Rita Potter (Chair) 
said, “I was very happy 
with the range of topics 
covered during the year 
and the contributions by 
Panel Members. The 
Panel’s Work 
Programme considered 
many important and 
cross cutting topics that 
impact directly on the 

lives and welfare of children and families in 
Wolverhampton. The work has been 
supplemented by site visits to The Way and 
MASH 24 office in Priory Green.  
 
The findings from an external review of SEND 
provision led to the setting up of a small 
scrutiny review group to review the progress of 
the action plan to address areas of concern. 
The work of the group provided Councillors 
with assurance about the progress made. 
 
The Work Programme topics have ranged 
from School Exclusion Policy and Practice, the 
provision of youth activities, School Appeals, 
the quality of SEND provision and educational 
achievements of Looked after Children.  The 
Panel has considered the impact of the Covid 
pandemic on young people, and the work 
done to support those with needing help with 
mental health issues to re-engage positively 
with education after an extended break. The 
increase in numbers of children being home 
educated or lacking digital connectivity to learn 
remotely have also been reviewed as well as 
the contribution of the cost-of-living financial 
pressures on families. 
 
The review of annual reports such as the 
Principal Social Worker Annual report and 
Virtual Head Teacher all have helped the 
Members of the Panel to get a much better 
understanding of the impact of different 
policies and the opportunity celebrate the 
success of efforts being made to improve 
outcomes for children and families.  

 
I would like to add my personal 
congratulations and those of the Panel to the 
report detailing the work led by Darren 
Martindale, Virtual School Head, and his team. 
This rightly received a round of applause on 
the excellent work done to support looked after 
children, to achieve such excellent education 
results. The contributions from Members of 
Wolverhampton Youth Council have been 
another highlight of the year. The contributions 
and questions have been well considered and 
helped give Panel members a much better 
understanding of the impact of the policies 
being presented. 
 
The Panel’s Work Programme has included 
several pre-decision scrutiny items, for 
example, plans to develop two children’s 
residential care homes in Wolverhampton.  
The impact of the financial challenges facing 
families and the range of support offered was 
a regular theme raised during the year.  
 
The Panel welcomed plans for opening a 
network of Family Hubs which is a good 
example of a successful bid to a nationally 
funded programme to provide early support 
and advice to families. The Panel will review 
their impact on the lives of local families of this 
programme and other projects later in 2023. 
 
I would like to add my personal thanks to the 
Scrutiny Officer and Wolverhampton Youth 
Council for their contributions and support to 
SFCYP Scrutiny Panel.” 

Adam Collinge (Vice 
Chair) said, “As Vice-
Chair, I believed it 
important to encourage 
the Panel to query and 
challenge what is 
presented, striving for the 
very best for children, 
young people and families 
across Wolverhampton. In 
particular, the Panel has 

sought to work collaboratively to address 
weaknesses in SEND provision through the 
Written Statement of Action. The Panel has 
also scrutinised educational attainment, 
access and standards, transitions to 
adulthood, youth activities and HAF provision, 

Page 15



 

14 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

youth justice, implementation of Family Hubs 
and many other items. 

The Panel is not the Executive, but rather a 
critical friend, a voice for what children, young 
people and families are telling us and a forum 
to drive improvements. Challenging areas for 
improvement is as equally as important as 
building on successes”. 

Fulfilled Adult Lives 
Chair: Cllr Val Evans  
Vice-Chair: Cllr Stephanie Haynes 
 

 
 
The first meeting of the year was in July and 
the Panel received reports on the following 
items, Update on Health and Social Care Act - 
Fair Funding, Adult Services Transformation 
Programme, and the Principal Social Worker 
Annual Report.   
 
For the item on the Health and Social Care 
Act, Members of the Panel had been advised 
earlier of plans to accept an invitation from the 
Department of Health and Social Care to 
participate in the Adult Social Care Reform 
Trailblazer. The aim of the plan was to test out 
how the introduction of fair cost of care 
reforms would work in practice. The local 
authorities involved would be required to share 
best practice and learning ahead a planned of 
a national roll out of the scheme.   
 
The Panel questioned the benefits, financial 
risks to the Council and the challenges in 
getting the information from care providers 
needed to meet the timetable set by 
Government. A key discussion was the risk of 
possible legal challenge from existing care 
home residents who could be financially worse 

off as a result of the scheme and the 
reluctance of care homes to share details 
about their costings. 
 
The Panel wanted to continue monitoring 
progress to provide reassurance about how 
risks were being managed and asked that a 
meeting be arranged if a key project task or 
milestone in the plan was likely to be missed. 
 
The meeting in October considered the 
following topics, Our Commitment to All Age 
Carers 2022, Adult Social Care Winter 
Planning 2022-23, and the Transforming Adult 
Services Programme 2021-22 Annual report. 
 
The meeting in January considered the 
following topics Performance, Budget 
Monitoring and Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy and the City of Wolverhampton 
Council's Local Account.  
 
On the Adult Social Care Annual Report: The 
Local Account 2021 -2022 item, the Panel 
discussed the findings and recommendations. 
The Panel discussion focused on the changes 
made to the service to better respond to a 
range of challenges and the performance 
against four areas of adult social care practice. 
The Panel welcomed the progress made and 
changes made to the layout and content of 
report in response to previous comments, for 
example, less use of jargon.  
 
The Panel made a specific request for 
reference to progress against priorities for 
2020 – 2021 separately in the next report.  
There was support for the proposed priorities 
for 2022-2023 and to continue to review 
progress against key priorities and to make the 
report as accessible to the public as possible. 
  
The meeting in February considered the 
following topics, Care and Support Provider 
Fee Review 2023-2024 and Market 
Sustainability. 
 
The final meeting of the year in March 2023 
considered the following topics, 
Implementation of Carer Commitment and 
ambition for carers going forward and the 
Adults Social Work and Workforce Health 
Check 2022. 
 

Page 16



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 15 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
 
 

Cllr Val Evans said, 
“The Panel has 
considered a range of 
big topics during the 
year, such as Adult 
Social Care Winter 
Planning 2022-23 
preparation, DHSC 
Health and Care 
Reform – Trailblazer 
programme, Social 

Work and Workforce Health Checks.  
The Panel have contributed well to all the 
discussions and the recommendations have 
had a positive effect on policies aimed at 
better meeting the current and future needs of 
local people. 
 
The Panel welcomed the progress made to 
deliver better care and support to the people of 
Wolverhampton and to challenge the negative 
headlines of the adult social care sector. The 
Panel support efforts of the Director of Adult 
Services to raise the profile of sector and to 
attract people to join the sector despite the 
challenges it faces. 
 
The Panel have seen the impact of Covid 19 
pandemic on these and other areas of policy 
and practice. We will continue to review 
policies and plans of the Council and how well 
they are responding to the challenges and 
opportunities this will present in the future.  
A highlight of the year for me was the Principal 
Social Worker Annual Report. This report 
celebrates the success of social workers and 
other staff who have continued to maintain 
such high standards service, despite the 
challenges. They deserve our thanks and 
appreciation.  
 
I would like to finally thank Panel members for 
all their valuable contributions to the meetings 
and look forward to building on the 
achievements of this year.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Stephanie Haynes 
(Vice-Chair) said, “It has 
been a challenging year 
in the Adult Social Care 
Sector, as the sector 
evolves following years of 
Covid.  The Panel has 
learnt a great deal about 
the changing nature of 
the sector and the 
difficulties it faces.  This 

will need to continue into the next Municipal 
year.  I have worked well with the Chair, the 
Director of Adult Services and the Officers 
supporting Scrutiny throughout the year.    
 

Residents, Housing 
& Communities 

Chair: Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Christopher Haynes 
 

 
 
 

At the first meeting of the Municipal year, 
Councillors considered an item on WV Living 
Governance and Linked companies. Council 
owned companies is an area which the Centre 
for Governance and Scrutiny has highlighted 
nationally where Scrutiny should be taking 
more of an interest and so this item was most 
timely. In addition to this item, they considered 
the Heath Town Regeneration Project.  
 
The September meeting saw the Panel 
consider an item on Community Safety.  
Superintendent Simon Inglis attended this 
meeting and answered questions from 
Councillors. Due to positive feedback Page 17



 

16 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

regarding the item, in the forthcoming 
Municipal year there will be two sessions 
focussing on Community Safety to which the 
Police will be expected to attend to answer 
questions.  A pertinent item the Panel 
considered, given the increasing costs of 
energy, was on the energy efficiency of the 
housing stock and fuel poverty.   
 
In November the Panel considered items on 
Performance Monitoring, Budget and the 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy, the new 
Housing Allocations Policy Impact, Active 
Travel, and the Public Realm. Housing 
enquiries is one of the most common areas 
which Councillors receive and so Councillors 
found great value in considering the Housing 
Allocations Policy.  This meeting also received 
the most views from the webcast in the 
Municipal year.   
 
At the last meeting of the Municipal year, the 
Panel received a report on the expanded 
Arboriculture Project, Gambling related harm 
in Wolverhampton, and Alcohol harm in 
Wolverhampton. Gambling was an area which 
the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny have 
been encouraging Councils to scrutinise, given 
its increasing impact on individuals, families 
and wider society. They have even produced a 
publication on the issue, which is available on 
their website. Officers from Public Health gave 
a presentation on gambling and alcohol at the 
meeting. There was an extensive and valuable 
debate on both of these issues.  Arboriculture 
is another area which Councillors receive 
extensive enquiries from residents.  The item 
certainly increased Panel Members knowledge 
about how the service is operating and how it 
has to operate within the law and guidance.   

 
Cllr Barbara 
McGarrity (Chair) 
said, “We have 
covered a lot of 
issues in the 
Residents, Housing 
and Communities 
Scrutiny Panel. I felt 
that the item on trees 
brought about a very 

helpful discussion as most of the Councillors 
do have casework about this issue.  We now 
know what the Arboriculture Team will look at 

in terms of actioning work on the trees.  I feel 
that this came from the Panel. Lots of useful 
discussion about how to help residents with 
their energy took place and all very topical with 
the cost of living crisis and the implications for 
residents. Throughout, my perception is that 
there has been a good contribution from 
Councillors, and it has added to the 
improvement of the residents of 
Wolverhampton lives”. 

 
Cllr Christopher 
Haynes (Vice-Chair) 
said, 
“Many topics covered 
during Municipal year 
22-23. From the Heath 
Town regeneration 
Project to Gambling 
and Alcohol related 
harm, the Panel has 

scrutinised an array of topics. Some good 
news, some not so. 
 
Gambling & Alcohol related harm in 
Wolverhampton is the highest rated in the UK. 
We had a report outlining what we have, as a 
Council, in place to confront these problems 
and how we will combat the root causes. 
Heath Town Regeneration Project brings great 
improvement to the local area and its 
residents. However, the true measure of 
success will be how these improvements and 
how they were done, can be run out around 
the rest of the City to improve the wellbeing of 
all residents.” 
 

Health Scrutiny 
Panel  
Chair: Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Paul Singh 
 

 Page 18



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 17 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

Health Scrutiny is a statutory function for the 
Council and this function is undertaken by the 
Health Scrutiny Panel.  The Municipal year 
started with a very important item on Primary 
Care. The Black Country and West 
Birmingham CCG reported on the changes to 
Primary Care since their last report to the 
Panel on Access to Primary Care, which was 
in December 2021.  As part of the same item, 
Healthwatch Wolverhampton presented their 
report on GP Appointments in Wolverhampton. 
This item was an excellent example of 
Scrutiny working in collaboration with 
Healthwatch and making clear 
recommendations.  
 
The six recommendations were as follows:- 
 
 

1. That Face-to-Face appointments with 
medical personnel at GP Practices should 
increase within the next six months across all 
Practices. 

2. That the new Integrated Care System 
continues to try and increase uptake of the 
NHS App, with the aim to achieve uptake 
above the national average. 

3. GP surgeries which currently do not offer 
the option of a video appointment with a local 
clinician, to be encouraged to implement this 
option in the future for patients who wish to 
use this appointment type.  

4. Surgeries which do not have a clear answer 
phone messaging and call waiting system to 
be encouraged to improve their system. 

5. That Healthwatch Wolverhampton be 
requested to complete another Primary Care 
Survey in approximately six months’ time. 

6. That Primary Care come back to the Panel 
as an item at the meeting scheduled to take 
place in January 2023.   

The meeting in September 2022 saw 
collaborative working with Staffordshire 
County Council.  Members of their Health and 
Care Overview Scrutiny Committee 
participated in the meeting via MS Teams on 
the Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Quality 
Accounts.  This was an excellent example of 

Scrutiny working with a neighbouring Council 
in a partnership approach driven by digital.     
 
The Public Health Annual Report featured at 
the meeting in September along with an item 
on Health Checks and Cancer Screening.  The 
item shone a light on the fact that Bowel 
screening, Breast screening and Cervical 
screening had seen a decline in uptake in 
Wolverhampton over the last five years and 
were lower than the national and regional 
averages.  Health checks were in a much 
better position. In quarter 1 of 2022/2023 
health checks were above both West Midlands 
and England respectively. Wolverhampton 
was above the England average over the last 
five years. The report highlighted where 
improvements could be made and the actions 
that would be taken to try and improve cancer 
screening rates in Wolverhampton and further 
increase health checks. 
 
 

The December meeting of the Panel saw the 
first scrutiny session on the Integrated Care 
System, since it had been established on 1 
July 2022. NHS England have established 42 
Statutory Care Boards in line with its duty in 
the Health and Social Care Act 2022.  A 
question and answer session was held on the 
system which included the new board, One 
Wolverhampton. Articles from the King’s Fund 
were included as part of the agenda papers, 
which helped give Members of the Panel a full 
understanding of the national debate on 
Integrated Care Systems.  The Health Scrutiny 
Panel will continue to work in partnership with 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, and 
Healthwatch within the changing health 
system.   
 
 

In January, the Panel considered One 
Wolverhampton’s priorities. They received a 
report on monitoring Urology Services 
following the merger of the service with 
Walsall.  Importantly they received a further 
report on access in Primary Care, to check on 
the status of the Panel’s recommendations 
from their meeting earlier in the Municipal 
year.   
 
 

The final meeting of the year was dedicated to 
the Better Health Rewards Scheme, in order to 
help its promotion.  The Better Health 

Page 19



 

18 Annual Report 2022/2023 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Rewards pilot scheme was launched on the 17 
February 2023 and was designed to last 6 
months, in partnership with the Office of 
Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID) 
and Headup Systems Limited.  
 
It was designed to test whether individuals 
would change their behaviours to eat healthier 
and exercise more in response to 
incentivisation. The Council applied to take 
part in the scheme because of its commitment 
and interest in Behavioural Sciences and were 
accepted due to their willingness to try 
something different in response to issues like 
obesity and a reduced willingness across the 
national population to participate in physical 
exercise.  
 

Cllr Susan Roberts 
MBE (Chair) said, “I am 
pleased that in the 
Municipal Year May 
2022 – May 2023, there 
was a particular focus 
on access to Primary 
Care. Primary Care is 
such a vital part of the 

Health System which regardless of age or 
health status plays a critical part in the lives of 
all our residents. I am also pleased to report 
that the Panel made significant 
recommendations on Primary Care Access, 
which have been monitored effectively during 
meetings of the Panel throughout the 
Municipal year. 
 
July 2022 saw the establishment of the 
Integrated Care System, this will be an area 
which the Health Scrutiny Panel will continue 
to scrutinise in order to ensure Wolverhampton 
gains the maximum it can from the new 
system of the Integrated Care Board and 
Integrated Care Partnership, with some 
devolved responsibility to the Local Board of 
One Wolverhampton. 
 
I would like to give thanks to all the health and 
adult social care partners who have engaged 
with Scrutiny in this Municipal year. A very 
special thanks goes to all the Officers who 
have helped to facilitate the Scrutiny meetings 
and in particular Officers from the Scrutiny 
Team.” 

 
Cllr Paul Singh (Vice-
Chair) said 
“I am passionate about 
the work we have 
carried out in Health 
Scrutiny across 2022 – 
2023. In working as a 
critical friend with our 
partners, we aim to 

make sure that the Local Authority provides 
the best services possible for its residents.  
 
A highlight for me has been scrutinising and 
shining a light on our Patient Participation 
Groups (PPGs) post-covid lockdown.  Working 
with our partners we have been ensuring that 
PPG’s have started to be brought back into a 
functioning state and we are continuing our 
work in this area to ensure all PPGs are 
operational, so patients have a voice in their 
services. I look forward to scrutinising 
Gynaecology Services in the new Municipal 
year.” 
 

Task and Finish 
Group: SEND Written 

Statement of Action  
 
 

The Cross-Party Members of the Scrutiny 
Working Group started work in September 
2022 in response to the findings from a SEND 
Local Area Ofsted inspection report in July 
2022. The report highlighted areas in need of 
urgent improvement.  
 
The working group wanted to review and 
contribute to the development of the action 
plan. The group also wanted to show their 
support for the work being done across the 
Council and local partner agencies to improve 
the quality of services to children and young 
people with SEND and their families.  The 
Panel met again in December 2022 to further 
review progress and had an informal briefing 
before the Local Government elections.   
 
The group met in July 2023 to discuss 
progress and were very pleased with work 
being done to get the rights processes in place 
and have already seen evidence of this Page 20



 

Annual Report 2022/2023 19 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

improved performance. The service is 
achieving a target 85% of EHC (Education, 
Health and Care) plans being reviewed within 
the target date compared to only 19% when 
the service was inspected.  
 
The group has had its final meeting and the 
feedback from the Deputy Director of 
Education has been very positive about the 
value of getting Councillors involved in such 
an important area of policy.  A report on the 
work of the group is expected in October 2023 
to the Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Panel. Scrutiny of the very important area of 
SEND will continue through the Scrutiny 
Panel. The working group recommended to 
the Scrutiny Panel continued monitoring of 
progress of actions detailed in the Written 
Statement of Action (WSOA) arising from the 
SEND review to be a priority in 2024 
 

Site Visits 
  

On 11 October 
2022 Scrutiny 
Board Members 
undertook a site 
visit to the Civic 
Halls. On 30 
November 2022, 

Economy and Growth Scrutiny Panel 
Members went on their own site visit to see 
the progress on the Civic Halls refurbishment.   
 

 

Economy and Growth Scrutiny Panel 
Members visited the National Brownfield 
Institute on 8 March 2023 to hear all about 
their work.           
 
On 13 March 2023, MASH 24 Priory Green 
Offices were visited by some of the Members 
from the Strong Families, Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Panel. 
 
The Chair and Vice-Chair of Health Scrutiny 
Panel visited Parkfield Medical Centre in 
December 2023.   

 
Many Councillors in 
their own time have 
visited the new 
restaurant space in 
the Art Gallery. It was 
a particularly special 

year for the Art Gallery because they have 
recently hosted the British Art Show 9.   
 

Useful Links 
Wolverhampton Webcast Library 
https://wolverhampton.public-
i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
 

Modern.Gov (Reports and Agendas) 
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgLis
tCommittees.aspx?bcr=1 
Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/ 
Local Government Association 
https://www.local.gov.uk/ 

Page 21

https://wolverhampton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://wolverhampton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/
https://www.local.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1 
 

s 

Scrutiny Work Programme  

2023 – 2024  
Version Date – 12 October 2023 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 N
o: 5



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

2 
 

 
The Scrutiny Work Programme – 2023 to 2024 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees should be powerful committees that can contribute to the development of Council policies and hold 
the Cabinet to account for its decisions.  Another key part of the overview and scrutiny role is to review existing policies, consider 
proposals for new policies and suggest new policies.  
 
Overview and scrutiny should be carried out in a constructive way and should aim to contribute to the delivery of efficient and effectives 
services that meet the needs and aspirations of local inhabitants.  Overview and Scrutiny Committees should not shy away from the need 
to challenge and question decisions and make constructive criticism.  
 
The Scrutiny Board and Scrutiny Panels will conduct their proceedings in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.  
 
Each Scrutiny Panel will, subject to guidance from the Scrutiny Board, be responsible for setting and reviewing their priorities and work 
programme for the year.  
 
Any member of the Scrutiny Board or a Scrutiny Panel shall be entitled to give notice to the Head of Paid Service that he/she wishes an 
item relevant to the functions of the Panel be included on the agenda for the next available meeting of the Board or Panel. On receipt of 
such a request the Head of Paid Service will ensure that it is included on the next available agenda.  
 
In addition to their rights as Councillors, members of the Scrutiny Board and Scrutiny Panels have additional right to documents, and to 
notice of meetings, as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4.  
 
The Scrutiny Board and Panels may scrutinise, and review decisions made, or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any 
Council functions. As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the scrutiny role, it may require any Cabinet Member, the Head of Paid 
Service and/or any Designated Officer to attend before it to explain in relation to matters within their remit:  
 

a) any particular decision or series of decisions;  
b) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; and/or  
c) their performance, 
d) and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required. 

 
 

P
age 24



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

3 
 

Key Links:  
 
Part 2 - Article 7 - Overview and Scrutiny Arrangements.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) 
Part 2 - Article 4 - The Full Council.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) 
Part 4c - Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) Part 4d - Access To Information Procedure Rules.pdf 
(moderngov.co.uk) 
 
Should you need to contact the Scrutiny Team please email: Scrutiny@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s218235/Part%202%20-%20Article%207%20-%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Arrangements.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s218232/Part%202%20-%20Article%204%20-%20The%20Full%20Council.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s218259/Part%204c%20-%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s218260/Part%204d%20-%20Access%20To%20Information%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s218260/Part%204d%20-%20Access%20To%20Information%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
mailto:Scrutiny@wolverhampton.gov.uk


[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

4 
 

 
 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of 
Meeting 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

City West Relaunch 
Scheme - Payments 

The Extraordinary 
Scrutiny Board meeting 
held on 2 May 2023 was 
adjourned.   
 
 

John 
Roseblade 

Isobel Woods / 
Richard 
Lawrence 

13 June 2023 5 June 2023 Completed 

Statutory Scrutiny 
Guidance and the 
Governance of 
Scrutiny Board 
 
 
 

A report detailing the 
purpose of Scrutiny Board 
and the Statutory Scrutiny 
Guidance.   
 

David Pattison 
 

David Pattison 13 June 2023 5 June 2023 
 
 

Completed 

Scrutiny Board 
Chair: Councillor Phil Bateman MBE 
Vice Chair: Councillor Ellis Turrell 
Scrutiny Support: Martin Stevens DL 
 
Strategic oversight 

• WMCA interface  

• MTFS (overall oversight on Revenue/Capital/Assets) 

• Overall performance (including Our City: Our Plan)  

• Levelling Up 

• Pre-Decision 

• Call in 

• Petitions 

• Wolverhampton Pound 

• Oversight of Select Committee work – reporting on outcomes 
 

P
age 26



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

5 
 

Budget 
Performance 
Monitoring Q4 
 
 
 

Standard Budget / 
Performance Monitoring 
Report – Q4.   

Claire Nye / 
Charlotte 
Johns 

Alison Shannon / 
James Amphlett 

20 July 2023 12 July 2023 Completed 

WMCA Devolution 
Deal 
 

To consider the 
Devolution Deal 

Charlotte 
Johns 

Laura Collings 26 September 
2023 

18 September 
2023 

Completed 

Social Housing 
Regulation Act 2023 
- Landlord Services 
Review 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny. 
Scrutiny Board requested 
this item come before 
them last time it was 
before them.   

John 
Roseblade 

Andrew Bryant / 
Lynda Eyton 

26 September 
2023 

18 September 
2023 

Completed 

Task and Finish 
Scrutiny Group 
Proposals 
 
 
 

As requested by the Chair 
and Vice-Chair of 
Scrutiny Board.   

David Pattison 
/ John 
Roseblade  / 
Ian Fegan 

N/A 26 September 
2023 

18 September 
2023 

Completed 

Budget 
Performance 
Monitoring Q1 
 

Standard Budget / 
Performance Monitoring 
Report 

Claire Nye / 
Charlotte 
Johns 

Alison Shannon / 
James Amphlett 

26 September 
2023 

18 September 
2023 

Completed 

Annual Scrutiny 
Report 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Scrutiny Report 
for May 2022 – May 
2023. 
 

David Pattison Laura Noonan / 
Martin Stevens 

23 October 
2023 

13 October 
2023 

Programmed 

Wolverhampton 
Local Plan 

Requested by Scrutiny 
Board in September.   

Richard 
Lawrence 

Stephen 
Alexander / Ian 
Culley 

23 October 
2023 

13 October 
2023 

Programmed 

P
age 27



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

6 
 

Communication 
Plan for the Council 
 
 

Cllr Phil Bateman 
requested this at a 
previous meeting of the 
Board. Stressing the 
importance of 
communications. 
 

Ian Fegan Richard Wyatt 14 November 
2023 

6 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Wolverhampton 
Pound Update 

Review of 
recommendations from 
Wolverhampton Pound 
Select Committee 

Claire Nye John Thompson / 
Parvinder Uppal 

14 November 
2023 

6 November 
2023 

Programmed 

West Midlands 
Combined Authority  

West Midlands Combined 
Authority falls in the remit 
of the Panel.  Members 
requested further scrutiny 
in this area.   
 

Charlotte 
Johns 

Laura Collings 12 December 
2023 

4 December 
2023 

Programmed 

Housing Revenue 
Account 
 
 

Item is received annually 
each year. 

Claire Nye Alison Shannon 12 December 
2023 

4 December 
2023 

Programmed 

Budget and 
Performance 
Update 

Item is received annually 
each year. 

Claire Nye Alison Shannon 6 February 
2024 

29 January 
2024 

Programmed 

Budget 
Performance 
Monitoring Q2 

Standard Budget / 
Performance Monitoring 
Report – Q2.  

Claire Nye / 
Charlotte 
Johns 

James Amphlett / 
Alison Shannon 

6 February 
2024 

29 January 
2024 

Programmed 

Flooding 
Preparedness 
 

The Chair of Board 
requested this item he 
previously chaired the 
Scrutiny Review Group 
on flooding. 

David Pattison Tim 
Munro/Emma 
Smallman 

5 March 2024 26 February 
2024 

Programmed 

P
age 28



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

7 
 

Emergency 
Planning 
(Date to be 
confirmed) 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny David Pattison Tim 
Munro/Emma 
Smallman 

5 March 2024 26 February 
2024 

Programmed 

Budget 
Performance 
Monitoring Q3 

Standard Budget / 
Performance Monitoring 
Report – Q3.  

Claire Nye / 
Charlotte 
Johns 

James Amphlett / 
Alison Shannon 

16 April 2024 
(Pre-election 
period) 

8 April 2024 Programmed 

 
To Be Scheduled for Scrutiny Board:- 
The Halls – At an appropriate time. (As per resolution when it was last discussed at Scrutiny Board) 
Funding Streams available to the Council (Action from 7 March 2023 – Scrutiny Board) 
Cross Directorate - Mental Health Item as discussed by Scrutiny Board on 20 July 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 29



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

8 
 

 
 
 

 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of 
Meeting 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

Portfolio for City 
Inclusive Economy 

Chair requested 
Portfolio Holder 

Richard 
Lawrence 

Richard 
Lawrence 

21 June 2023 13 June 2023 Completed 

Economy and Growth Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman 
Vice Chair: Councillor Udey Singh 
Scrutiny Support: Lee Booker 
 

Remit, Function and Measures  

• Help create good quality local jobs 

• Working in partnership to support local people into work and better jobs 

• Ensuring flexible skills systems which support local businesses to grow and residents to access good jobs 

• Supporting local businesses to start up, scale up and thrive 

• Attracting new investment which brings social and economic benefit to all 

• Creating vibrant high streets with quality culture and leisure offers 

• Growing the low carbon and circular economy 

• Number of working age adults (16-64) claiming unemployment benefits 

• Number of young adults (18-24) claiming unemployment benefits 

• Level of 16 & 17 year old NEETS 

• Number of jobs created / safeguarded in the city through the Investment Team  

• % Local Authority spend on apprenticeship levy 

• Number of apprentices and graduate placements within the council  

• Empty properties in the city centre 

• Business that survive one year in city 

• Businesses that survive five years in the city  

• % of premises in the city with full fibre coverage 

• Number of rapid charging electric car points in the city 

• Wolverhampton based businesses supported by the Council 

• New investment opportunities generated by the Council 

P
age 30



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

9 
 

about his Plans and 
Priorities for the 
Municipal Year 
 
 

to give a 
statement about 
his plans for the 
year. 

Supporting the City’s 
Businesses 

Item requested 
at previous 
Panel meeting 
due to European 
Funding coming 
to an end in 
April.    

Richard 
Lawrence 

Isobel Woods 21 June 2023 13 June 2023 Completed 
 

Supporting more 
people into jobs and 
training 

Item requested 
at previous 
Panel meeting 
as part of on 
going Scrutiny 
on policy. 

Emma Bennett Isobel Woods 21 June 2023 13 June 2023 
 

Completed 
 

IPW Consultants 
Report on Visitor 
Economy 
 
 

Item requested 
by Chair and 
agreed by Panel 

Ian Fegan / 
Richard 
Lawrence 

Ian Fegan 11 July 2023 3 July 2023 CANCELLED 

IPW Consultants 
Report on Visitor 
Economy / 5 Years 
Event Strategy 
 

Item requested 
by Chair and 
agreed by Panel 

Ian Fegan / 
Richard 
Lawrence 

Ian Fegan 27 September 
2023 

19 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

National Brownfield 
Institute & Green 
Innovation Corridor 
 
 

Chair of Panel 
requested NBI to 
present their 
business case. 

Richard 
Lawrence 
 

 
 

27 September 
2023 

19 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

P
age 31



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

10 
 

Former Heath Town 
Baths 
 

Panel requested 
a further item on 
this to check 
status of 
Development.   

Richard 
Lawrence 

 27 September 
2023 

19 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

Strategic Economic 
Plan 

Requested by 
Deputy Chief 
Executive for 
inclusion.   

Charlotte 
Johns/Richard 
Lawrence 

Charlotte Johns 29 November 
2023 

21 November 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Budget and 
Performance Update 

Standard report 
received each 
year.   

Claire Nye Alison Shannon 29 November 
2023 

21 November 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Development of 
Hotels in the City 
and the Visitor 
Economy 

Panel Members 
have requested 
status of 
bringing new 
Hotels into the 
City.   

Richard 
Lawrence 

Liam Davis 29 November 
2023 
 
 
 
 

21 November 
2023 
 

Programmed 
 

Green Economy to 
include 
establishment of 
Green Partner Board 

Panel were 
promised a 
report on the 
Green Partner 
Board in 
previous 
Municipal year 

Richard 
Lawrence 

N/A 29 November 
2023 

21 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Provisional Q&A 
with Portfolio 
Holder/Deputy 
Leader 

Question and 
Answer Session 

Richard 
Lawrence 

N/A 
 

7 February 2024 30 January 2024 Programmed 

City Business 
Support Follow up 

Request from 
Richard 

Richard 
Lawrence 

Isobel Woods 
 

7 February 2024 30 January 2024 Programmed 

Strategies for 
tackling 

Resolution from 
the Panel 

Emma Bennett Julie Obada 7 February 2024 30 January 2024 Programmed 

P
age 32



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

11 
 

unemployment in 
Wards 

 
To Be Scheduled 
Creation Festival  
 
 

 
 

Health Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Vice Chair: Councillor Paul Singh 
Scrutiny Support: Lee Booker 
 
Remit, Function and Measures  

• Keep residents safe by containing and reducing the spread of Covid-19 

• Close the gap on healthy life expectancy  

• Help people live happier more active lives 

• Protect vulnerable people at risk of harm and exploitation 

• Inclusive, welcoming communities where people feel safe and look out for each other 

• Alcohol specific mortality per 100,000 

• % of physically inactive adults (Public Health Outcomes Framework) 

• % of less active children (Active Lives Survey) 

• Suicide rate (all persons) per 100,000 

• % of 40-74 year olds attending offered health checks 

• Number of individuals in treatment for alcohol (increase) 

• Number of successful completions of alcohol treatment (no representation - increase) 

• Number of alcohol detoxes (increase in referred, initiated, and completed) 

• Narrowing the gap in % of adult residents in the city who have received their Covid-19 vaccination 

• Number of ‘free’ activities for CYP in the city and uptake by- long term health conditions, disabilities, low socioeconomic groups, 
minority ethnic groups 

• Number of referrals to physical activity opportunities by a health professional  
 

P
age 33



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

12 
 

 
 

Item Description Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of 
Meeting 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

Hearing Aids 
 
 

Presentation on 
Hearing Aid services 
across the City. 
Access for patients 
and performance stats. 

Paul Tulley, 
Managing 
Director – 
Wolverhampton 
ICB 

Sally Sandel - 
ICB 

29 June 2023 21 June 2023 Completed 
 

Patient Participation 
Groups 
 
 

Report/Presentation on 
the status of Patient 
Participation Groups in 
the city, including 
performance 
information and status 
of activity. 

Paul Tulley, 
Managing 
Director – 
Wolverhampton 
ICB 

Sally Sandel - 
ICB 

29 June 2023 21 June 2023 
 

Completed 
 

Local Joint Health 

and Wellbeing 

Strategy 

Officers requested this 
come before the 
Panel.  

John Denley Madeleine 
Freewood 

29 June 2023 21 June 2023 
 

Completed 

Healthwatch Urology 

Survey Report 

Healthwatch requested 
to bring item to the 
Panel 

Stacey Lewis N/A 29 June 2023 21 June 2023 Completed 

P
age 34



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

13 
 

CQC Inspection 
Report on the Black 
Country Healthcare 
NHS Foundation 
Trust Adult Acute 
Service 

Scrutiny on the recent 
downgrading of the 
Adult Acute Services 
at the Mental Health 
Trust 

Marsha Foster 
(Chief 
Executive – 
Black Country 
Healthcare 
NHS 
Foundation 
Trust) 

Dr Mark Weaver 
(Chief Medical 
Officer – Black 
Country 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation 
Trust) 

21 September  
2023 

13 September 
2023 
 

Completed 
 

Maternity Services 
RWT 
 

Chief Executive of 
RWT requested this 
come before the Panel 
due to the national 
changes and reports 
on failures at other 
Trusts.   

David Loughton 
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

Debra Hickman, 
Chief Nursing 
Officer - RWT 

21 September 
2023 

13 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

RWT Quality 
Accounts 

Standard report 
received each year.  

David Loughton 
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

Cody Long, 
Deputy Director 
of Assurance - 
RWT 

21 September 
2023 

13 September 
2023 
 

Completed 
 

Healthwatch Annual 
Report 

To receive the annual 
Healthwatch report. 
Standard item. 

Stacey Lewis – 
Wolverhampton 
Healthwatch 

N/A 21 September 
2023 

13 September 
2023 

Completed 

P
age 35



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

14 
 

Budget and 
Performance Update 

Standard report 
received each year.  

Claire Nye /  
Charlotte Johns 

Allison Shannon 
/ James 
Amphlett 

14 December 
2023 

6 December 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Child to Adult 
Transition Services 

Member of the Panel 
requested.   

David Loughton  
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

N/A 14 December 
2023 

6 December 
2023 
 

Programmed 
 

Hospital at Home RWT requested this 
item about Virtual 
Wards. 

David Loughton 
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

N/A 14 December 
2023 

6 December 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Healthwatch GP 
Services Survey 

Healthwatch survey to 
incorporate feedback 
on call access times as 
well as investigating 
website patient 
access. 

Stacey Lewis – 
Wolverhampton 
Healthwatch 

N/A 14 December 
2023 

6 December 

2023 

Programmed 

Public Health Annual 
Report 
 

Standard Annual 
Report the Panel 
receives each year.  

John Denley Madeleine 
Freewood 

14 December 
2023 

6 December 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Women’s Health 
Services 
(Gynaecology) 

Vice-Chair requested 
item.  Joint item with 
RWT, Public Health 
and ICB with a focus 
on Gynaecology 
services at New Cross 
and Trust partners, the 
Manor and Cannock. 
 

David Loughton 
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

N/A 18 January 
2024 

10 January 
2024 

Programmed 
 

West Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
Review 
Wolverhampton 

Routine item required 
for review by the Panel 

Pippa 
Wall/Mark 
Doherty 

N/A 18 January 
2024 

10 January 
2024 
 

Programmed 
 

P
age 36



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

15 
 

Integrated Care 
System Review of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
Priorities 

Full review of the 
strategy and 
performance against 
priorities.   

John 
Denley/Paul 
Tulley 

N/A 18 January 
2024 

10 January 
2024 
 

Programmed 
 

One Wolverhampton 
- Pharmacy 

How Pharmacy 
services are changing 
within the new health 
system framework . 

John 
Denley/Paul 
Tulley 

N/A 18 January 
2024 

10 January 
2024 
 

Programmed 
 

RWT Hospital 
Transport Service 

Requested by the 
Panel when they 
considered Urology 
item.  To be included, 
small report on New 
Cross parking 

David Loughton 
(Chief 
Executive – 
RWT) 

N/A 21 March 
2024 

13 March 2024 Programmed 

Mental Health Item Children’s Mental 
Health Services 

Marsha Foster N/A 21 March 
2024 

13 March 2024 
 

Programmed 
 

Dentistry 
 

Children’s and Adults John Denley Bal Kaur 21 March 
2024 

13 March 2024 
 

Programmed 
 

Tuberculosis 
 
 

Item requested by Vice 
Chair 

John Denley Ainee Khan 21 March 
2024 

13 March 2024 Programmed 

 
To be added - How the Care Quality Commission works in Wolverhampton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 37



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

16 
 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author Lead 

Date of 
Meeting 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

Rough Sleepers 
Update 

Presentation on 
the Councils 
homelessness 
team and up to 
date information 
on rough 
sleepers 

John Denley Anthony Walker 27 June 2023 19 June 2023 
 

Completed 
 

Climate Change, Housing and Communities Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor Anwen Muston 
Vice Chair: Councillor Wendy Dalton 
Scrutiny Support: Earl Piggott-Smith 
 
Remit, Function and Measures  

• Work together to deliver more new homes 

• Ensuring safe and healthy homes for all 

• Ensuring access to a secure home 

• Ensuring clean, green neighbourhoods and public space 

• Well-connected businesses and residents 

• Number of new builds completed in the city  

• Net additional dwellings in the city  

• % of dwelling stock that is vacant in the city  

• Housing affordability ratio 

• Total crime recorded per 1000 population 

• % of planning application decisions made with 13 weeks or agreed timescales  

•  Number of homeless support in the community to prevent further harm 

Number of domestic abuse cases referred to Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) 

• WV Active membership numbers with breakdown by- long term health conditions, disabilities, low socioeconomic groups, 
minority ethnic groups 

• % Domestic Abuse related incidents and crimes 
 
 

P
age 38



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

17 
 

Improvement of 
Housing 
Standards 
through 
Licensing 
(exempt report) 
 

Report on 
Housing 
Standards in the 
private rented 
sector with 
particular focus 
on licensing. 

John 
Roseblade 

Chris Howell & 
William Humphries 

27 June 2023 19 June 2023 
 

Completed 
 

Safer 
Wolverhampton 
Partnership 
Strategic 
Priorities 
Consultation 

Officer request.   
 

John Denley Hannah Pawley 27 June 2023 19 June 2023 
 

Completed 
 

Wolverhampton 
Homes – 
Building Safety 
Strategy 
(particular focus 
on Fire Safety) 

Member 
requested at a 
previous meeting.  

Shaun Aldis Simon Bamfield/Ian 
Gardner (WHM) 

28 September 
2023 

20 September 
2023 

Competed 
 

West Midlands 
Local Transport 
Plan Status  

Panel received a 
report last year 
and asked them 
to come back in 
the future. 

John 
Roseblade 

Alex 
Greatholder/Marianne 
Page 
(TfWM) 

28 September 
2023 

20 September 
2023 
 

Completed 
 

Wolverhampton  
Homes 
Customer 
Engagement 
Strategy - 
briefing  
 
 

At Chair’s 
request.   

John 
Roseblade 

Shaun Aldis/ Julie 
Haydon 

28 September 
2023 

20 September 
2023 
 

Completed 
 

Climate Change 
2028 

Chair requested. David Pattison  
 

Perminder 
Balu/Oliver Thomas 

19 October 
2023  

11 October 
2023 

Programmed 

P
age 39



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

18 
 

 

Fly Tipping Member 
requested at 
Scrutiny Board.   

John 
Roseblade 

Steve Woodward 19 October 
2023  

11 October 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Community 
Safety Police 
Session 1 

Panel requested 
more items on 
the police after a 
previous 
successful 
meeting with the 
Police. 
 
Provisional idea –
Violent Crime and 
combatting Drugs 
 

John Denley Supt Martin Hurcomb 
– West Midlands 
Police 

16 November 
2023 

8 November 
2023 

Programmed 
 

Budget and 
Performance 
Update 

Standard item 
received each 
year.   

Claire Nye Alison Shannon 16 November 
2023 

8 November 
2023 
 

Programmed 
 

Community 
Safety Strategy 
Consultation – 
final  

The panel agreed 
to review the 
recommendations 
of the 
consultation 

John Denley Hannah Pawley 22 February 
2024 

14 February 
2024 

Programmed 
 

Combatting Anti-
Social Behaviour 
 
 

Item ties in with 
the Police and 
Community 
collaboration 
theme and 
enables Panel full 
overview with a 
partnership 
approach 

John Denley tbc 22 February 

2024 

14 February 
2024 

Programmed 
 

P
age 40



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

19 
 

Community 
Safety Police 
Session 2 

To include 
Rehabilitation of 
offenders and 
services for 
reintegration into 
community post-
sentence 

John Denley Lynsey Kelly 22 February 
2024 

14 February 
2024 

Programmed 
 

 
To be scheduled 
 

• Aids and Adaptations - concern about delays in assessments - possible joint work with Adults Scrutiny Panel 

• Homelessness Strategy  

• One Public Estates Project - Ballal Raza - Regeneration Programme Manager  

• City Centre Public Space Protection Order Proposals  

• Invite to Police and Crime Commissioner and West Midlands Chief Constable 

• Update on West Midlands Local Transport Plan - February 2024 

• Update Wolverhampton Homes Customer Engagement Strategy - March 2024 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

20 
 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of Meeting Publication 
Date 

Status 

4 July Meeting 
Postponed 

N/A N/A N/A 4 July 2023 26 June 2023 Agenda Sent 
Postponed 

Post Covid 
Position – update 
briefing 
 
 

Update on current 
position 

Becky Wilkinson Becky Wilkinson 17 October 2023 9 October 2023 Programmed 

Principal Social 
Worker Annual 
Report 

This is an annual 
report that is 
presented to the 
panel for 
discussion and 
comment on the 
work of the 

Becky Wilkinson Jennifer Rogers 17 October 2023 9 October 2023 Programmed 

Adults Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor Val Evans 
Vice Chair: Councillor Christopher Haynes 
Scrutiny Support: Earl Piggott-Smith 
 
Remit, Function and Measures  

• Support the Health and Social Care system to respond to and recover from Covid-19 

• Maximise independence for people with care and support needs 

• Work as a system to make sure that people get the right support at the right time 

• % of older people (aged 65 and older) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation 
services  

• % of adults with learning disabilities in paid employment 

• % of social care users supported to remain in their own homes  

• % of adults who use services who say social care services help them to feel safe and secure  

• % of adults in receipt of long-term services who are in control of their own lives 
 
 

P
age 42



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

21 
 

Principal Social 
Worker in 
promoting and 
improving the 
quality of social 
work practice and 
outline the key 
priorities for 2023-
2024. 

Adult Social Care 
Winter Planning 
2023-24  

Request from 
Director to add this 
item to the agenda. 
 

Becky Wilkinson 
and Health 
Partners 
 

Becky Wilkinson 
and Sian 
Thomas, Paul 
Tulley and 
Rachel Murphy 
 

17 October 2023 9 October 2023 Programmed 
 

CQC Assurance 
Preparation 

Presentation on 
CQC readiness 
and assurance for 
comment 

Becky Wilkinson Meena 
Dulai/Becky 
Wilkinson 

20 November 

2023  

 

12 November 

2023 

Programmed 

Our Commitment 
to 
All Age Carers 
2022 

Request from the 
panel to provide an 
update on 
progress. Carers to 
be invited to 
present 

Becky Wilkinson 
 

Sandra Ashton 

Jones 

20 November 

2023  

12 November 

2023 

Programmed 

2022 Adult Social 
Work and Wider 
Workforce Health 
Check Actions   

This is an annual 
report that 
presented to the 
panel for 
discussion and 
comment. 
 

Becky Wilkinson Courtney Abbott 20 November 

2023  

 

12 November 

2023 

Programmed 

P
age 43



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

22 
 

Budget and 
Performance 
Update 

Request from 
Director to add this 
item to the agenda. 

Becky Wilkinson 
 

James Amphlet, 
James Barlow 

5 December 
2023 

27 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Care and 
Support Provider 
Fee Review 
2023/24 

This is an annual 
report that 
presented to the 
panel for 
discussion and 
comment. 

Becky Wilkinson 
 

Andrew 
Wolverson 

20 February 
2024 
 

12 February 
2024 
 

Programmed 

Adult Social Care 

Position 

Statement – 

Review of the 

Year  

CQC 
Quality 
Transformation 

Becky Wilkinson Becky Wilkinson 19 March 2024 11 March 2024 Programmed 

2023 Children’s 

Services Social 

Work and Wider 

Workforce Health 

Check Survey 

 

This is an annual 
report that 
presented to the 
panel for 
discussion and 
comment. 
 

Becky Wilkinson Courtney Abbott 19 March 2024 11 March 2024 Programmed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

23 
 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of Meeting Publication 
Date 

Status 

Wolverhampton 
Children and 
Young People’s 
Self-Evaluation 
2023-24 
 

This is an annual 
report that is 
presented to the 
panel for 
comment. 

Emma Bennett Alison Hinds 27 July 2023 19.7.23 Completed 
 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor Qaiser Azeem 
Vice Chair: Councillor Stephanie Haynes 
Scrutiny Support: Earl Piggott-Smith 
 
Remit, Function and Measures  

• Ensuring that children have the best start in life and good early development 

• Ensuring high quality education that closes the attainment gap 

• Ensuring that children and young people grow up happy with good physical, social and mental health, and wellbeing 

• Ensuring that every young person in the city is equipped for adulthood with life skills and ready for work 

• Ensuring that families are strengthened where children are vulnerable or at risk 

• % of Early Years and Childcare settings rated Good or Outstanding  

• % of take up of 2-year-olds benefitting from early education  

• % of schools in the city that are rated Good or Outstanding  

• Average Attainment 8 score per pupil   

• % gap in Attainment 8 score gap between advantaged and disadvantaged children  

• % of 16 and 17 year-olds with SEND in education, employment, or training  

• % of care leavers in education, employment, or training  

• First time entrants into the Youth Justice System per 10,000 population  

• Rate of children open to social care per 10,000 population under 18  

• % of repeat referrals into Childrens Social Care with 12 months  

• % of children and young people in care who have had 3 or more placements in the year 

• % of EHC plans issued within 20 weeks 
 

P
age 45



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

24 
 

 
 

Principal Social 
Worker Annual 
Report 2022 - 
2023 
 

This is an annual 
report that is 
presented to the 
panel for 
comment. 

Emma Bennett Jennifer Rogers 27 July 2023 19.7.23 
 

Completed 
 

Education, Skills 
and Employment 
Strategy – Pre-
Decision 
Scrutiny 
 

At the request of 
the Director, 
agreed by the 
Chair  

Emma Bennett Laura Collings 27 July 2023 19.7.23 Completed 
 

SEND  
Written 
Statement of 
Action - 
DFE/NHS 
monitoring 
meeting - update 

This will be a 
verbal update on 
the findings from 
the DFE/NHS 
monitoring visit 
on 6 July 2023 
and update from 
Cross Party 
Scrutiny Review 
Group - Written 
Statement of 
Action 
 

Alison Hinds  Brenda Wile 4 October 2023 26 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

Childcare 
Sufficiency 
Assessment 

This is an annual 
report that is 
presented to the 
panel for 
information and 
comment. 

Alison Hinds Phil Leivers  4 October 2023 26 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

WST Exploitation 
Thematic Review  

At the request of 
the SEB lead 

Alison Hinds Andrew 
Wolverson 

4 October 2023 26 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

P
age 46



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

25 
 

WST Knife Crime 
Thematic Review 

At the request of 
the SEB lead 
 

Alison Hinds Andrew 
Wolverson 

4 October 2023 26 September 
2023 

Completed 
 

Semi-supported 
accommodation 
registration and 
children’s homes 
not registered 
with Ofsted 
update  

At the request of 
the SEB lead 
 

Alison Hinds 
 

Jazmine Walker/ 
Alison Hinds 
 

4 October 2023 26 September 
2023 

Deferred 
 

Budget and 
Performance 
Update 

Request from 
Director to add 
this item to the 
agenda. 
 

Alison 
Hinds/Brenda 
Wile 

James Barlow 22 November 
2023 

14 November 
2023 

Programmed 

SEND and 
Inclusion 
Strategy (pre-
decision 
scrutiny) 

At the request of 
the SEB lead 

Alison Hinds Brenda Wile 
 

22 November 
2023 

14 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Youth and 
holiday offer in 
the City 

Panel requested 
details of youth 
holiday offer and 
progress since 
earlier report. 

Alison Hinds Andrew 
Wolverson 

22 November 
2023 

14 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Family Hubs and 
Start for Life 
Offer Programme 
- information 
only 

The panel 
requested an 
update on plans 
to establish the 
programme and 
to review 
progress. 
 

Alison Hinds Alison Hinds 22 November 
2023 

14 November 
2023 

Programmed 

P
age 47



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

26 
 

School Exclusion 
and Suspension 

The panel 
requested on 
update on plans 
to reduce the 
number of school 
exclusions and 
suspensions. 

Alison Hinds Brenda Wile   31 January 2024 
 

23 January 2023 Programmed 

Education 
Excellence: 
Update and 
monitoring 
 

The panel 
requested an 
update on 
progress 
following the 
presentation of a 
previous report 
draft in January 
2023. 

Alison Hinds Phil Leivers 31 January 2024 23 January 2023 Programmed 

Childrens 
Services Social 
Work and Wider 
Workforce Health 
Check Survey 

This is an annual 
report that is 
presented to the 
panel for 
comment 
specifically on 
the survey 
findings from 
social workers 
and other 
workers in 
children's 
service. 

Alison Hinds Jennifer Rogers 13 March 2024 5 March 2024 Programmed 

School’s 
Organisation 
Plan 
 

To report on the 
plan following 
request from the 
Chair.  

Alison Hinds Brenda Wile / Bill 
Hague 

13 March 2024 5 March 2024 Programmed 

P
age 48



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

27 
 

School Appeals 
 
 

Panel requested 
a report following 
the item last 
year. 

David Pattison Laura Gittos / 
Jaswinder Kaur 

13 March 2024 5 March 2024 Programmed 

 
To be scheduled 

• Children’s Social Care Reform - Pre-Decision Scrutiny (tbc) - Alison Hinds 

• Universal Credit Rollout 

• Children's Oral Health – January 2024 special meeting (tbc) 

• Wolverhampton Holiday Activities and Food Programme Annual Report 2022/2023 

• Children’s Residential Provision Business Case – Briefing Note in October 2023 (Alison Hinds), approved by the Chair.  

• Proposed visit to new Childrens Residential Care Homes (Jan 2024 tbc) - Alison Hinds 

• Proposed visit to Family Hub network (tbc) - Alison Hinds 

• Education, Skills and Employment Strategy update – July 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 49



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

28 
 

Item Description SEB Lead Officer 
Report/Author 
Lead 

Date of Meeting Publication 
Date 

Status 

EDI strategy - 
Equalities Impact 
Assessments 
 

Standing item 
  
How the Council 
evaluates Equalities 
implications on 
projects and policy.  

David Pattison 
 

 

Jin Takhar 08 June 2023 31 May 2023 Completed 

Resources and Equality Scrutiny Panel  
Chair: Councillor John Reynolds 
Vice Chair: Councillor Sohail Khan 
Scrutiny Support: Lee Booker 
 
Remit, Function and Measures  

• Measuring Success 

• Our City Our Plan – Our Council Programme  

• Our Assets  

• Our Data  

• Our Digital  

• Our Money  

• Our People  

• Our City: Our Plan – PRIDE values 

• Wolverhampton Pound 

• Gender pay gap of council employees 

• Ethnicity pay gap of council employees 

• Customer Service call wait times 

• Sickness absence rates 

• Employee turnover rate 

• Spend with local businesses 

• Overall, how well informed do you think your council keeps residents about the services and benefits it provides? (LGA Resident 
Satisfaction Survey) 

 

P
age 50



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

29 
 

Land and 

Property 

Disposal Annual 

Report 

Presentation on the 
handling of Asset 
Disposals 

Claire Nye 

 
Julia Nock 08 June 2023 31 May 2023 Completed 

Treasury 
Management 
Activity 
Monitoring 
Quarter Three 
2022-2023 

A quarterly report Claire Nye Allison Shannon 08 June 2023 31 May 2023 Completed 

EDI strategy 
Progress against 
Objectives 

Our People, Adult, 
Children, Education 
and People. EDI 
Performance and 
KPIs 

David Pattison 
 

Jin Takhar 
 

12 October 2023 
 

4 October 2023 Completed 

Race at Work 
Charter & Pay 
Gap Reporting 

Presentation on 
progress with Race 
at Work Charter 
responsibilities 

David Pattison Jin Takhar 12 October 2023 4 October 2023 Completed 

Treasury 
Management 

For Information Only Claire Nye 

 
Alison Shannon 12 October 2023 4 October 2023 Completed 

Reserves To discuss the 
Council’s Reserves 
 
 

Claire Nye Alison Shannon 7 December 
2023 

29 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Budget and 
Performance 
Update 

Request from 
Director to add this 
item to the agenda – 
the report to include 
Our Council and 
Performance/Budget 
information. 

Claire Nye 

 
Laura Phillips/ 
James Amphlett/ 
Alison Shannon 

7 December 
2023 

29 November 
2023 

Programmed 

P
age 51



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

30 
 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 2024-
2025 report 

pre-decision scrutiny 
– this is an annual 
report. 
 

Claire Nye Allison Shannon 7 December 
2023 

29 November 
2023 

Programmed 

Yoo Recruit 
Review 

Request from the 
Panel 

David Pattison Michelle Rowe 1 February 2024 24 January 2024 Programmed 

EDI strategy 
Progress against 
Objectives 

Standing item 
Progress 

 

David Pattison Jin Takhar 1 February 2024 24 January 2024 Programmed 

Digital Wolves 
Strategy Update 
(paper) 

This is an update to 
the report presented 
in February 2023 
aimed at maximising 
the benefit of digital 
to residents and 
businesses in the 
city. 

Charlotte Johns Heather Clark 1 February 2024 24 January 2024 Programmed 

Strategic Asset 
Plan 2024-2029 

Pre-Decision - 
Extended briefing as 
requested by the 
Chair to discuss 
Asset Disposal 
Strategy 

Claire Nye Julia Nock 1 February 2024 24 January 2024 Programmed 

Contract 
Management 
and Procurement 
Report 

this reports updates 
previous report that 
was presented to 
the panel in October 
2022. 

Claire Nye 

 
 

John Thompson 

 

12 March 2024 4 March 2024 Programmed 

Gender Pay Gap 
review 

Standing item 
  
 

David Pattison Jin Takhar 12 March 2024 4 March 2024 Programmed 

 
Customer 
Service Strategy 

Request from panel 
on update on 
changes to the 

Charlotte Johns Lamour Gayle 12 March 2024 4 March 2024 Programmed 

P
age 52



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

31 
 

 strategy following a 
presentation in 
October 2022. 

LGA Resident 
Satisfaction 
Polling 

The panel requested 
a report on the 
findings. 

Charlotte Johns  Lamour Gayle 12 March 2024 4 March 2024 Programmed 

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Scrutiny Annual Report May 2022 - May 2023
	5 Scrutiny Work programme



